
Transromanica is a culture route trailing the European 
Heritage of Romanesque period.
Transromanica is a European cultural tourist route, 
connecting the monuments in Germany, Austria, Italy, 
France, Spain, Slovenia, and since November 2007, 
in Serbia, too.
The monasteries of Žiča, Studenica, Gradac, Đurdjevi 
Stupovi and Sopoćani, form part of this cultural tourist 
route.
The Council of Europe included the Transromanica in its 
Program: "The Main European Routes of Culture", as it 
brings together and promotes the common heritage of 
Europe. 

ROMANESQUE ELEMENTS IN THE SERBIAN MEDIEVAL ART

The Serbian medieval art is unique in its combination of 

art of the East - the Byzantium. Such and original synthesis 
evolved because of the special location of the Serbian lands, 

family, Nemanjićs, played a major role in the political life of the 

arts, which boomed in late 12th and particularly in late 13th 
centuries, in Raška. The initial monumental buildings date back 
to the rule of Stefan Nemanja (1168-1196), the founder of the 
dynasty Nemanjićs. 

Opening to and assimilation of Romanesque elements in the 
Serbian Medieval Art can be traced in the most representative 

the Romanesque art from the West reached Serbia from 
Southern Italy, across the Coast. The painting of the time was 

are found primarily in architecture and sculptures. 

The Romanesque style is clearly recognized in the exterior of 

architectural forms; and on the architectural plastics, that is 
sculptures, which form a whole with the architecture itself. 
The Romanesque elements are particularly revealed in the 
western facade, which was richly decorated with embellished 
portal (door), and most often one window above. At the altar 
apses, there is a window of a larger dimension or sometimes a 
triforium (ternate window), most often decorated in the 
Romanesque spirit. 

as architectural plastic, and is a proponent of the Romanesque 
style. Plastic decoration is carved in marble in deep relief, 
and besides decorative bears a symbolic character. 

Žiča Studenica Gradac
The Monastery with the Church of the Savoir (Ascension of Christ) is in Central Serbia, between 
Kraljevo and Mataruška Spa, and was commissioned by Nemanja's sons, Stefan the First 
Crowned and Sava. The time is not exactly known. It has been assumed that it was started in 

of Serbia. Žiča is known as the Coronation Church, (seven Kings of Serbia were coroneted 
there) and the church of designation of the Serbian Archbishops.

in frescoes after the acquisition of autonomy.
The architecture of Žiča follows the earlier Nemanja's endowments, but is characterized by a 
considerably more complex building program, which became a model for the entire later 
Raška architecture.
A robust Romanesque turret was built in front of the added monumental narthex.

still clearly indicate Romanesque impact, most probably brought by the artisans of Kotor. 

- The Monastery is open for visitors daily between 9 AM and 7 PM
- Souvenir shop hours between 9 AM and 6 PM
- Curator available
- Parking with toilets

Contacts:

The Žiča Monastery
Telephone: +381 36 816 817
е-mail: manastirzica@ptt.yu
www.manastirzica.org.yu

Tourist Organization Kraljevo
Telephone: +381 36 316 000
е-mail: jutok@tron-inter.net
www.jutok.org.yu, www.kraljevo.co.yu

National Museum Kraljevo
Telephone: +381 36 337 960

The Monastery is near the Ibarska Gorge, near the settlement of Ušće, surrounded by 
fascinating hilly and lush forest landscape. The construction of the Monastery is associated 
with the zenith might of Stefan Nemanja. His youngest son, Sava, in his book devoted to the 
life of his father, wrote on the occasion of the construction of the Monastery:" it used to be as 
deserted a place as a hunting ground for beasts..." Within the Studenica Monastery compound 
the most important and best know is the church devoted to the Mother of God Evergetida - 
Church of our Lady, which is a crypt of Stefan Nemanja. It was built in the period between 
1183-1196/7. Byzantine view of the world and Romanesque elements were brought together 
in a unique manner in this major monument of Nemanja. The exterior is in the Romanesque 
spirit, while its paintings bear the Byzantine characteristics. The Romanesque elements are 

shaped friezes on consoles cut in stone. Monumental portals are characteristic as are the 

triforium on the altar apses, which dominates the eastern part of the church thanks to its 
exquisitely carved plant motive decorum and phantasmagoric creatures, as a winged dragon 
and basiliscus, with a long snake tale. Sculptural ornament and the form of that triforium 
served as a model almost literally replicated on the altar triforium of the Church in Dečani. 
The Romanesque decoration of St. Marry's church in Studenica represents one of the richest 
programmatic and stylistic creations in the Serbian Medieval art. 
UNESCO placed Studenica on the List of the World Cultural Heritage, in 1986.

- The Monastery is open to visitors between 9 AM and 5 PM
- Souvenir shop hours from 9 AM to 6 PM
- Parking lot and toilet cabin
- Curator available at the Monastery

Contacts:

The Studenica Monastery
Telephone: +381 36 836 422
е-mail: studenica@ptt.yu

Tourist Organization Kraljevo
Telephone: +381 36 316 000
е-mail: jutok@tron-inter.net
www.jutok.org.yu, www.kraljevo.co.yu

National Museum Kraljevo
Telephone: +381 36 337 960

The Monastery is on the raised plateau above the river Brvenica on the woody slopes of Golija 
Mount. The year of its foundation cannot be determined; it is taken as if it were in the last 
quarter of XIII century. It is the endowment of the Queen Helen d'Anjou, wife of King Uroš I, 
where she was burred in 1314. Helen d'Anjou was born in France and thanks to her origin 
many Romanesque and, generally, Western European elements found its way to Serbia, 

the then prevailing architectural tendencies towards slimmer and elongated buildings, 
reverting to the old models, primarily Studenica. 
The synthesis of the Byzantine and Romanesque elements rank the church among the 
monuments belonging to the Raška School, however enriched by new formal, 
constructive and decorative solutions, akin to the art of the West.
The architectural plastic carries the properties of the mature and late Romanesque art, 

mostly marble framed windows and a series of blind arcades of the roof corona. Second to 
Studenica, it was the most richly adorned church of 13th century Serbia.

- The Monastery is open for visitors daily between 9 AM and 5 PM
- Souvenir shop hours 9 AM to 6 PM
- Curators available 
- Parking lot 

Contacts:

The Gradac Monastery
Telephone: +381 36 78 743, 64 640 8113
e-mail: mangradac@gmail.com

Tourists Organization of Raška
Telephone: +381 36 736 085, 738 670

www.raska-turizam.co.yu, www.raska.org.yu

Sopocani Ðurđevi Stupovi The Curch of St. Peter and Paul 

The Monastery is situated near the source of the River Raška, not far from the ancient town 
of Ras, once the Serbian Capital.  The Monastery with the church devoted to Trinity, it is the 
endowment of King Uroš I (1243-1276). It was built in the second half of 13th century, 
and became mausoleum of the royal family. From outside the church looks like a three-nave 
basilica. In that, way the Sopoćanska Church resembles in its form, the Romanesque churches 
of the West. The portals (door) and all the windows, except of the cupola are Romanesque 
\in shape. The westernmost part of the church with a tower – turret is built later on and bears 
the characteristics of Romanesque art. Although Sopoćanska Church has not many rich 
adornments carved in marble on the façade, portals and doors, its greatest artistic 
achievement and value is the internal decoration – frescoes, as one of the most exquisite 
painting masterpieces of the European art of 13th century. The Monastery compound of 
Sopoćani (together with the complex of the Ancient Ras) because of exceptional spiritual, 
cultural and artistic value was included by UNESCO, in 1979 in the List of the World Cultural 
Heritage.

- The Monastery is open for visitors daily between 9 AM and 6 PM
- The Souvenir shop, Gallery and Info center
- Curator available 
- Bus and car parking lot

Contact: 

The Sopoćani Monastery
Telephone: +381 20 445 110
e-mail: sopocani@Lycos.com, sopocani@eunet.yu
www.manastirsopocani.org

Tourist Organization Novi Pazar
Telephone: +381 20 338 030
e-mail: haris.gegic@yahoo.com

Town Museum in Novi Pazar
Telephone: +381 20 331 681

The Monastery is near Novi Pazar, on top of a cone-like elevation, a rare position in the Serbian 
Medieval Art for a monastery being on a prominent place. The building of the Monastery 
started, most probably, in 1167, and it was found (according to the endower's inscription on 
the western portal of the church) that the works were completed in 1170/71. It was 
commission by Stefan Nemanja, who dedicated the church to St. George, for having him out 

Stefan Nemanja took over the power of the Grand Zupan of Raška. 
Uniquely, the staircase leads to the western entrance, because of the position of the church. 
Craftsmen from the coastlands have brought along their Romanesque skills. Characteristic of 
the Romanesque style are two domes included in the plan of the church, situated in the west, 
to the left and right from the narthex. The plan and spatial layout of the church, portals and 

UNESCO included the Đurđevi Stupovi in the World Art Heritage.

- Visits to the Monastery between 9 AM and 4 PM
- Curator available
- Museum, Information Point, Souvenir Shop
- Parking lot 

Contacts: 

The Đurđevi Stupovi Monastery
Telephone: +381 20 445 110 
e-mail: stupoviurasu@ptt.yu
www.djurdjevistupovi.org.yu
www.podignimostupove.com

Tourist Organization Novi Pazar
Telephone: +381 20 338 030
e-mail: haris.gegic@yahoo.com

Town Museum in Novi Pazar
Telephone: +381 20 331 681
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This is the most prominent preserved heritage of the beginnings of the monumental 
architecture in Serbs in middle ages.  It was built by the end of 10th or 11th centuries. It was 
the Seat of the Ras Diocese. As the legend goes, Stefan Nemanja was baptized in this church, 
in the old Ras (Novi Pazar).  

The architectural concept is quite distinctive. Its internal structure is in the form of 
tetraconhronos, with a dome above the central part lying on thrones, while externally it has a 
form of a rotunda with protruded semicircular apse to the East. Below the dome and above 
the conics there is a gallery on three sides upstairs. The building material is broken stone. The 

octagonal tambour of the dome. It has an added asymmetrical antechamber on the western 
and northern part of the building.

Contacts: 

Tourist Organization Novi Pazar
Telephone: +381 20 338 030
e-mail: haris.gegic@yahoo.com

Town Museum in Novi Pazar
Telephone: +381 20 331 681

S E R B I A



rs


	01
	02

